ALASKA STATE LEGQ SLATURE
HOUSE STATE AFFAI RS STANDI NG COW TTEE
February 24, 2015
8:02 a.m

VEMBERS PRESENT

Representative Bob Lynn, Chair
Representative Wes Keller, Vice Chair
Representative David Tal erico
Representative Louise Stutes
Representati ve Max G uenberg

Represent ati ve Jonat han Krei ss- Tonki ns

VEVMBERS ABSENT
Representative Liz Vazquez
COWM TTEE CALENDAR

HOUSE BILL NO 56
"An Act establishing Al aska Firefighters' Day."

- MOVED HB 56 OUT OF COW TTEE
HOUSE BI LL NO 22
"An Act establishing a maxi num casel oad for probation and parol e
officers."
- HEARD & HELD
PREVI QUS COW TTEE ACTI ON
BILL: HB 56

SHORT TI TLE: ALASKA FI REFI GHTERS DAY
SPONSOR(s) : REPRESENTATI VE(s) LYNN, CLAMAN

01/ 21/ 15 (H) PREFI LE RELEASED 1/ 16/ 15

01/ 21/ 15 (H READ THE FIRST TIME - REFERRALS
01/ 21/ 15 (H) STA

02/ 24/ 15 (H) STA AT 8:00 AM CAPI TOL 106
BILL: HB 22

SHORT TI TLE: PROBATI ON AND PAROLE OFFI CERS CASELQADS
SPONSOR(s) : REPRESENTATI VE(s) TUCK

01/ 21/ 15 (H PREFI LE RELEASED 1/9/ 15

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -1- February 24, 2015



01/ 21/ 15 (H) READ THE FIRST TIME - REFERRALS
01/ 21/ 15 (H) STA, FIN
02/ 24/ 15 (H STA AT 8:00 AM CAPI TOL 106

W TNESS REG STER

ESTHER M LKE, St aff

Representative Bob Lynn

Al aska State Legislature

Juneau, Al aska

PCOSI TI ON STATEMENT: Presented HB 56 on behalf of Representative
Lynn, joint prine sponsor.

KELLY NI COLELLO, Director/State Fire Marshal
Division of Fire and Life Safety

Department of Public Safety

Anchor age, Al aska

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of HB 56.

JEFF TUCKER, Second Vice President

Al aska Fire Chief's Association (AFCA)

Kenai, Al aska

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of HB 56.

REPRESENTATI VE CHRI S TUCK

Al aska State Legislature

Juneau, Al aska

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: As prinme sponsor, presented HB 22.

CHARLES STEWART, Probation O ficer

Anchor age Correctional Conpl ex

Division of Institutions

Depart ment of Corrections

Anchor age, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified during the hearing on HB 22.

WARREN WATERS, Probation Oficer

Anchorage Correctional Conpl ex

Division of Institutions

Depart ment of Corrections

Anchor age, Al aska

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified during the hearing on HB 22.

RONALD TAYLOR, Conm ssi oner

Departnent of Corrections
Anchor age, Al aska

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 2- February 24, 2015



PCSI TI ON STATEMENT:  Answer ed questions during the hearing on HB
22.

ACTI ON NARRATI VE
8:02:11 AM

CHAIR BOB LYNN called the House State Affairs Standing Conmttee
meeting to order at 8:02 a.m Representatives Keller, Stutes

Talerico, and Lynn were present at the <call to order.
Representatives Kreiss-Tonkins and Guenberg arrived as the
nmeeti ng was in progress.

HB 56- ALASKA FI REFI GHTERS' DAY

8:02:43 AM

CHAI R LYNN announced that the first order of business was HOUSE
BILL NO 56, "An Act establishing Al aska Firefighters' Day."

[ CHAIR LYNN handed the gavel to Vice Chair Keller.]
8:03: 15 AM

CHAIR LYNN, as joint prime sponsor, introduced HB 56 and stated
that firefighters run into burning buildings to rescue people at

the risk of their own I|ives. He said they fight forest fires
and respond during natural disasters, such as the Good Friday
Eart hquake on WMarch 27, 1964. Further, he noted that

firefighters are first responders to nedical energencies; they
save lives by admnistering cardiopul nonary resuscitation (CPR)
and wusing defibrillators and the "jaws of life." He said
firefighters even collect funds for charities. Chair Lynn said
the proposed legislation honors firefighters with their own
speci al day, and he opined that they deserve the recognition.

8:04:49 AM

ESTHER M LKE, Staff, Representative Bob Lynn, Alaska State
Legi slature, presented HB 56 on behalf of Representative Lynn,
joint prime sponsor. She echoed Representative Lynn's remark
that the proposed legislation would establish a day to honor
firefighters in the state and thank them for the work they do to
keep people safe. She said HB 56 would designate the Sunday
preceding October 9th as Al aska Firefighters' Day. She said
that particular date was chosen, because it nmarks the begi nning
of National Fire Prevention Woe ek, which was established to

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 3- February 24, 2015



commenorate the Great Chicago Fire of 1871. She concl uded, "W
hope this bill wll help all Al askans to renenber to take the
time to appreciate and thank the firefighters that keep us safe
every day."

8: 05: 57 AM
KELLY N COLELLO, Director/State Fire Mirshal, Dy vision of Fire

and Life Safety, Departnment of Public Safety, related there are
approximately 1,500 firefighters in Alaska, made up of career,

muni ci pal , borough, wld Iand, and airport firefighters.
Additionally, there are approxinmately 6,000 vol unteer nunicipal,
borough, wvillage, and wld land firefighters, and all are
consi dered professionals that serve their comrunities with their
heart, soul, pocketbook, and sonetines even their |ives. He
said the wvast majority are volunteers that have full-tine
careers. M. Ncolello said all firefighters dedicate nmany
extra hours in education and training to prepare as emnergency
responders, and they ask for little or no material return for
their services. He posited that the general public does not

understand the sacrifice of tinme and commtnent it takes to
serve as a firefighter.

MR. NI COLELLO explained that firefighters have a deep pride in
what they do and their self-respect and satisfaction conmes from
knowi ng they make an imediate and inpactful difference when
soneone is having one of their worst nonents. He further
expl ained that they make things right; they console; they save
lives and property; and if you ask any one of them that's good

enough for them Nevert hel ess, he stated that respect and
expressed appreciation are currencies firefighters truly
appr eci at e. He enphasized the positive effect of raising

appreciation of firefighters to the state |evel and opined that
Al aska Firefighters' Day would be a great way to denonstrate
that their personal involvenent nmeans nore than what happens
locally, that "the service they perform has a direct inpact on
the quality of life of those around them and is recognized as a
positive contribution to Alaska as a whole."

MR. N COLELLO said he thought it was appropriate to recognize
firefighters during Fire Prevention Wek, because it is a week
when people renenber those firefighters who lost their |ives
during the performance of their duties, and it is a time when
there is a focus on educating children in the principles of fire
safety throughout schools and conmmunity organizations. He
added, "And what a better day than a Sunday to thank God for

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -4- February 24, 2015



what they do and show them the appreciation they deserve?" He
asked the commttee to nove HB 56 forward.

8:08:44 AM

JEFF  TUCKER, Second Vice President, Alaska Fire Chief's
Associ ation (AFCA), testified in support of HB 56 and echoed M.
Nicolello's statenent that firefighters across the state
sacrifice much to serve their communities. He noted there is
already a day when those firefighters who have fallen in the
line of duty are recognized, and he enphasized the inportance of
celebrating Alaska firefighters and their conmtnment and service
to comunities. He said people sonetinmes take for granted the
job firefighters perform until they need them and opined that
it is appropriate for Alaskans to take a day to pause and
celebrate the service of firefighters.

VICE CHAIR KELLER, after ascertaining no one further w shed to
testify, closed public testinony on HB 56.

8:10: 23 AM

REPRESENTATI VE STUTES noved to report HB 56 out of comittee
with individual recomendations and the acconpanying fiscal
notes. There being no objection, HB 56 was reported out of the
House State Affairs Standing Conmittee.

CHAI R LYNN t hanked comm ttee nenbers for supporting HB 56.
8:11: 02 AM

The conmmttee took an at-ease from8:11 a.m to 8:13 a.m

[During the at-ease, Vice Chair Keller returned the gavel to
Chair Lynn.]

HB 22- PROBATI ON AND PARCLE OFFI CERS' CASELOADS

8:13: 04 AM

CHAI R LYNN announced that the final order of business was HOUSE
BILL NO 22, "An Act establishing a maxinmm caseload for
probati on and parole officers.”

8:13: 21 AM

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 5- February 24, 2015



REPRESENTATIVE CHRIS TUCK, Alaska State Legislature, as prine
sponsor, presented HB 22. He paraphrased the first two
paragraphs of the sponsor statenent, which read as follows
[original punctuation provided]:

In Alaska, two-thirds of offenders return to prison
within three years. Legislators and conmunities have
been dedicated to reducing the high rate of
recidivism but we have mssed the inportant piece of
supporting our probation officers. Probation and
parole officers provide key services than can help
recently-rel eased offenders re-enter society snoothly
and reduce recidivism However, many  probation
officers are seeing an increase in caseloads which
di minishes the anobunt of time spent wth each
i ndi vi dual .

According to a study by The PEW Center on the States,
success rates anong offenders are not high. Mre than
40% of probationers and nore than half of parolees do
not conplete their supervision ternms successfully. In
fact, parole violations account for alnost 35% of
adm ssions in state prisons, and nearly half of |oca
jail inmates were on probation or parole when they
were arrested.

8:14: 37 AM

REPRESENTATI VE TUCK rel ayed that 64 percent of inmates with the
Department of Corrections in Alaska are non-violent offenders
and probation violators. He indicated that returning parole
violators cost the state approximately $158.67 per day for "hard
prison bed," and al nbost $58,000 a year, per inmate. He stated
that about 40 percent of the inmates are pre-trial offenders
awaiting bail, who have not been convicted of a crimnal
of f ense. He indicated that of those, the highest rate of
reci di vism occurs anong youthful males, mnorities, and property
of f ender s. He said the departnent reported that the current
aver age casel oad of parole officers is 85.

REPRESENTATI VE TUCK paraphrased the next two paragraphs of the
sponsor statement, which read as follows [original punctuation
provi ded] :

In recent years, the nunber of duties for probation

officers has grown to include the taking of DNA
sanpl es, ensuring the offender’s conpliance with the

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 6- February 24, 2015



Sex O fender Registry and conducting honme visits and
address confirmation checks. Corrections populations
have al so experienced tremendous growh for the past
two decades. In an attenpt to alleviate jail and
prison crowdi ng, probation caseloads are being
popul ated with offenders that potentially pose greater
community safety threats. These offenders may be gang
menbers, sex of f enders, or donmestic vi ol ence
of fenders, and require nore officer tinme to provide
adequate supervision, treatnent, and enforcenent of
conditions in order to effectively nodify their
behavi or.

A nunber of studies have examned practices of
probation officers and have denonstrated that nedium
and high-risk offenders garner the nost benefit from

i ntensi ve correctional i nterventions. Pr o- soci al
nodeling and reinforcenent, probl em sol ving, and
cognitive techniques are core skills for reducing
recidivism in probation supervision. [|f probation

officers are spending less time with each individua
due to high caseloads, their ability to help offenders
devel op these skills is severely hanper ed.

8:16: 44 AM

REPRESENTATI VE TUCK said probation and parole officers provide
key services that can help recently released offenders reenter
society snoothly and can reduce recidivism He indicated that
under the proposed |egislation, the nunber of caseloads for
parole officers would be dimnished. He relayed that currently
there are 11 states that limt probation officer casel oads. He
said right now DOC is running at "101 percent"” of its general
capacity, despite opening its Goose Creek Prison Facility in
2002, at a cost of $250 mllion. He stated that if wunabated,
Al aska's annual 3 percent prison population growh would result
shortly in the need for a new prison. He reported that Al aska's
prison population was growing at a rate four tines that of the

state's popul ation. One way to ensure that rate does not
continue its gromh is to ensure the success of people comng
out of prison and entering society. He relayed that as of

January 23, 2015, Al aska's incarceration rate was 5,216
of fenders in prison.

8:18: 49 AM

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -7- February 24, 2015



REPRESENTATI VE TUCK indicated that the State of Texas has
statutes to limt the nunmber of caseloads from 11 to 60, wth

the higher nunmber being allowed for |ighter cases. He naned
el even states [that have adult probation and parole officer
casel oad statutes]: Arizona, Connecticut, Florida, Idaho,
Kentucky, M nnesota, Nebraska, New Mexico, North Carolina,
Texas, and Vernont. He said HB 22 would set the maxinum

casel oad at 60, but noted that npbst of the other states have a
l[imt of 50 or |ess, dependent upon the level of crinme that has
been commi tt ed.

8:20:17 AM

REPRESENTATI VE TUCK, in response to Chair Lynn, reiterated that
currently the average caseload for probation officers is 85, and
he confirmed that the casel oads vary depending on the severity
of the crinme for which a person was incarcerated. He said the
Department of Corrections ensures that officers are specialized
in the areas in which they work with parolees and people on
pr obati on.

CHAIR LYNN said he agrees with the intent of HB 22, that the
nunber of casel oads should be reduced; however, he remarked on
the serious financial trouble Alaska is having, and he
guestioned whether the state could afford the proposed
| egi slation. He asked how rmuch it would cost the state to bring
t he nunber of casel oads down.

REPRESENTATIVE TUCK said at this point the cost was
indeterminate. He indicated that the State of Texas cl osed down
one of its prisons in 2012, as result of addressing the issue of
recidivism and limting the casel oads of parole officers was a

big part of that. He said Texas saw a savings of approximately
$440 mllion annually. He said the State of Alaska's prison
system is the fifth largest expenditure in its budget. He

stated that the goal is to invest wisely in order to reduce the
cost down the road. Limting the casel oad of probation officers
woul d be one way to do so.

REPRESENTATI VE TUCK stated that probation officers are the front

line to those individuals exiting the prison system As a
matter of public safety and success, those officers hold
rel eased prisoners accountable. They also coach them and
partner them with resources necessary for their success. When
the caseloads beconmes too heavy, it is often the exiting

prisoner that is not guided, and he/she often commits another
crime or nakes a technical error that requires a return to

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 8- February 24, 2015



pri son. He said the jobs of probation officer and parole
of fi cer cannot be done by a conputer; they require face to face
time with parol ees and probationers.

8:23:59 AM

CHAI R LYNN offered his understanding that the sponsor was saying
that the State of Alaska would save the cost associated wth
parol ees going back to prison because of reduced recidivism
under HB 22.

REPRESENTATI VE TUCK responded that is correct. He nentioned a
2015 Reci divism Reduction Plan and the Pew Research Center, and
he said there was a recommendation in a report to invite the Pew
Public Safety Project to provide Alaska with free technical
assistance to help identify factors in driving down Al aska's
prison popul ation grow h. He said there are a lot of studies
directly related to probation officers. He stated that the
second- hi ghest reason for felony admssion is probationary
failure, and he reiterated that limting casel oads would all ow
focus on probationers and parolees and "give them the proper
attention for their successes.”

8:25:24 AM

REPRESENTATI VE TALERI CO observed that there are 207 probation
officers that work for the state and 6,258 people on probation
and parole, which conmes out to an average of 30.3 per casel oad.
He ventured that the problem exists nostly in Anchorage, where
the caseload is about 85 people per officer. He asked if that
is correct.

REPRESENTATI VE TUCK responded that there is a problem in
Anchorage and higher rates in None and Barrow, the nunbers vary
by study and the overall average is about 85 - 85 statew de.”
He relayed the |owest [caseloads] in the past have been in
Bet hel and Fairbanks. He indicated that the nunbers fluctuate
depending on the nature of crinmes and availability of services.

8:28:02 AM

CHAIR LYNN asked how the system works wth parolees from
vil | ages.

REPRESENTATI VE TUCK deferred to representatives from DOC

8:28:32 AM

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 9- February 24, 2015



REPRESENTATI VE KELLER opi ned that the sponsor had portrayed the
rati o between inmates and probation officers as one that can be
adjusted in order to reduce recidivism He nentioned Senate
Bill 64, passed in 2014, which was focused on this very problem
Part of that |egislation would expand Probationer Accountability
with Certain Enforcenment (PACE) statew de, and there was funding
involved that would reform the [Dvision of Probation and
Parol e] . He also nentioned electronic nonitoring, risk
assessnent tools to determ ne whether an inmate is violent, and
treatment prograns across the state focused on recidivism
Further, he said the Departnment of Health and Social Services
(DHSS) is involved. He expressed he was having difficulty
understanding why the sponsor thinks that "just putting ... a
cap on this ratio will do rmuch.” He said his inpression is that
DOC is conmmtted to reducing recidivism and has no aversion to
spending noney to that end. He nentioned the fiscal note and
said there is a big range of inprisoned. He offered his
understanding that in an admnistrative probation situation,
"they say 200 isn't unreasonable." He opined that a statutory
cap on the nunber of cases ignores what's going on and "what we
just did." He asked Representative Tuck to explain the critica
nature of the ratio in the <context wth all the other
af orenenti oned recidivismreduction efforts al ready goi ng on.

8:31:35 AM

REPRESENTATI VE TUCK read the bill Ianguage and clarified that
[HB 22] would not be the whole answer, but a part of it. He
said PACE started in 2010 and allows quick action to get a
parole violator back in to a program He said the second
hi ghest reason for recidivismis probation violation, and other
states have shown a reduction in recidivism as a result of
putting a cap on casel oads. He offered nore details regarding
the State of Texas, which has a limt of 60 caseloads for |ow
risk inmates, 35 for those in a special needs offender program
or a substance abuse program 24 for those in a sex offender
program 20 for those who are electronically nonitored, and 11

for those in a super-intensive supervision program He said
Al aska's electronic nonitoring program is under the supervision
of its parole and probation officers. He tal ked about the job

of the officers to provide coaching, counseling, and to bring
resources to the probationer that could help keep hinfher from
returning to prison.

8:34:48 AM

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -10- February 24, 2015



REPRESENTATI VE KELLER asked whether the prinme sponsor believes
that DOC has resources currently to acconplish this wthout
| egi slation, and would do so. He said it sounded |like the prine
sponsor was assuming that the departnment would overwork the
of ficers. He said he thinks the departnment has the resources
now and woul d not overwork the officers.

REPRESENTATI VE TUCK responded that if DOC has the resources now,
then inplementing the bill should be easy. He said this should
be somet hi ng t hat is i mpl enent ed beyond t he current
adm ni strati on. He acknowl edged that the departnment has worked
over the years to bring the nunber of casel oads down from 120 to
85, and the goal is to reduce that nunber to 60.

8:36: 02 AM

CHAIR LYNN asked whether <currently there are enough parole
officers available to bring that nunber down to 60 or |ess,
wi thout hiring additional officers.

REPRESENTATI VE TUCK offered his understanding that there are
quite a few positions unfilled; however, he deferred to DOC to
answer the question.

8:36:40 AM

REPRESENTATI VE KREI SS- TOWKI NS asked whet her any thought had been
given to including language in HB 22 that creates different
casel oad caps based on the risk |evel of the parol ee.

REPRESENTATI VE TUCK answered that the departnent currently has
three levels it works wth: m nimum nmedium and naxi mum
[risk]. He offered his wunderstanding that the departnent
attenpts to distribute the spectrum to each officer rather than
giving any one officer all maxinmum level risk parolees, for
exanpl e. He explained that he wanted to allow the departnent
the flexibility to define how it wants to function, but just
wanted to limt the casel oads to 60.

8:38:15 AM

CHARLES STEWART, Probation O ficer, Anchorage Correctiona
Compl ex, Division of Institutions, Departnent of Corrections,
opined that HB 22 is inportant |egislation for probation
officere whose job it is to work with offenders to help them
change their thinking behavior, which will help them stay out of
jail. He said the goal of the departnent is to reduce

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -11- February 24, 2015



recidivism but it is not possible to do that now because
officers are doing so nuch paperwork and have little tine to
wor k hands on with offenders. He said caseloads run from 80 to
100 or nore. He stated that on February 18, 2015, a hearing was
held by the House Finance Conmmttee to address the 2015
Reci divism Reduction Plan presented by the Recidivism Wrk
G oup. He said "we" believe it is a great plan; however, there
is one large problem the nunber of caseloads of probation
of ficers. He said currently officers are spending tinme putting
out fires started by a handful of individuals, while a majority
are left without face-to-face guidance at a critical time in
their |Ilives. He said, "Wile we support the evidence-based
approach in handling offenders, we nust have nore face-to-face
time with each offender in our caseloads for the evidence-based
program to work." He enphasized the inportance of working with
each individual on their program plan. The progranms require
nmore paperwork in careful docunentation and nore tinme spent with
i ndi vi dual s. He said failure to reduce caseloads would result
in a failure to reduce recidivism He noted that during a House
Finance Conmmttee hearing information was relayed that the
current recidivismrate was 63.19 percent as of fiscal year 2011
(FY 11), and that the Departnment of Corrections is currently at
"101 percent" of general capacity and increasing at a growh
rate of 3 percent each year.

8:41: 54 AM

MR. STEWART said a report from North Carolina, dated March 2013,
shows that a caseload of 60 is ideal. He indicated that nost of
the Departnment of Correction's officers are assigned a casel oad
of 66; however, because of vacant positions, job injury, nedical
| eave, or mlitary |leave, the caseloads "in real |ife" exceed 70
percent . He indicated that a 2011 report showed that South
Carolina had special caseloads of approxinmately 30 individuals,
whi ch covered the categories of nmental health and sex of fenders.

8:43:14 AM

MR, STEWART said when the Recidivism Reduction Plan was given to
t he House Finance Committee, it was stated that there were about
5,100 inmates at a cost of $158 a hard bed per day. He said
"our" goal is to cut recidivism by at least 15 percent, which
woul d be a cost savings of roughly $27 mllion a year. He said
it is necessary to spend noney in order to save noney, but
evidence from other states show that noney will be saved in the
future. If the problemis not fixed now, he said, the cost of
incarceration wll continue to clinb. He stated, "Keeping

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -12- February 24, 2015



of fenders out of jail by providing active probation officers'
supervision is the answer to reduce recidivism"” He asked the
commttee to support HB 22, because he said the officers are
trying as hard as they can but need the |egislature's help.

8:44:55 AM

WARREN  WATERS, Probation Oficer, Anchorage Correctional
Compl ex, Division of Institutions, Departnent of Corrections,
relayed that as a worker for the State of Alaska, he is allotted
37.5 hours a week. He said divided by a caseload of 85, that
comes out to 26.5 mnutes per parolee per week, and that does
not include driving to court or doing hone visits or conpleting
all the data entry. He said a child cannot be raised on 26
hours a week, and officers are dealing with people who have a
| ot of needs. He said the attenpt is nade to neet those needs
in order to keep those people from returning to prison.
Further, he stated that officers have nany assessnent tools with
which to determne a parolee's needs and custody level. He said
the level of service inventory (LSI) is the current assessnent
tool used, and it takes over an hour to conplete an LSI for each

of f ender. In response to Chair Lynn, he explained that the LSI
is the tool wused to figure out the mninum rmedium maxi num
custody level in order to determne programng and treatnent
needs.

MR. WATERS recollected that soneone had asked why caps are
necessary if the departnent already has a system in place. He
said the short answer is that the departnent is run by people,
and when there is crisis or budget shortfall, those people nmake
cuts and don't fill positions, which neans everyone else has to
pick up the slack. He stated that on paper, it nmay appear there
are enough officers to do the job, but human error plays a part

i n managenent . He said having a cap establishes a |limt for
officers. M. Waters gave exanples of how problens surface that
result in overloading of probation/parole officers. He said

many parole officers cringe when they open a newspaper and read
that soneone has conmitted a heinous crinme, and they are hoping
that that person was not on their casel oad. He said it happens
nore often than not that the people reported as having commtted
a crine are those who are on probation or parole. He said
officers wonder if crimes could have been prevented if only they
had had a few nmore mnutes with the parolee and found them a
better job or better housing.

8:49: 56 AM

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -13- February 24, 2015



MR. WATERS said he knows everything costs nmoney and this is not
the year to be asking for it. He stated that the officers are
dealing with bad people, trying to keep the comunity safe, and
trying to help people change their |ives. He said, "That's al
we're asking for is the tine to spend with these individuals to
change their lives to make Al aska a better place."

CHAI R LYNN asked why there are vacant positions.

MR. WATERS said he only can speculate that sonme offices have
high turnaround rates, partly because of nanagenent issues and
partly because of the issue of caseloads. He indicated that the
department had understood that under Senate Bill 64, it would be
getting 10 nore positions, but those positions have not been
filled in the nine nonths since that |egislative session ended.

8:51:44 AM

[Due to technical difficulties, the following question was
reconstructed fromthe commttee secretary’s | og notes.]

REPRESENTATI VE STUTES asked whether M. Waters was required to
see each parol ee weekly.

MR. WATERS answered no. He added, "Not even nonthly; it just
depends on the type of casel oad.”

REPRESENTATI VE KELLER asked what M. Waters' own casel oad was at
present.

MR WATERS answered over 100. He said the Anchorage
Correctional Conplex supervises approximately 1,100 i nmates,
because it is also responsible for the four halfway houses in
t he Anchorage area. He related that there are ten probation
of ficers at the conpl ex.

8:53: 02 AM

RONALD TAYLOR, Comm ssioner, Departnment of Corrections, thanked
the commttee for hearing HB 22. He indicated that it is in
talking to probation officers that a person gets the sense of
what those officers face daily. In response to Chair Lynn, he
expl ained that on the probation and parole side, the departnent
has a required vacancy factor that it nust neet, which is
approximately $1 mllion; therefore, there would be at |east ten
vacant positions. He said, the other two would be because of

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -14- February 24, 2015



transfers, or it could be because soneone |left one of the
of fi ces.

COWMM SSI ONER TAYLOR, regar di ng Representati ve Tal erico's
previous calculations, said it is incorrect to "look at the 207"
and, based on the current caseload activity, conclude that the
caseload is about 34. He expressed his desire for everyone
consi dering casel oads addressed under HB 22 to realize that the
intent is to help probation officers be nore successful by
giving them nore time wth each case. He offered his
understanding that the nunber 6,200 had been highlighted in
regard to caseload activity and indicated that that nunber
includes only the field caseloads; it does not include casel oad
activity of the institutional fields, the electronic nonitoring
fields, the parole board, or classification. He said the 207
probation officers also include supervisors, sone of whom do not
carry a casel oad. He indicated he wanted everyone to share the
same understanding regarding the entire scope of caseloads, so
that no one wuld question the need for the proposed
| egi sl ati on.

8:55:59 AM

COWM SSI ONER TAYLOR noted that Representative Keller had asked
whet her the department currently has sufficient resources. He
said the answer is "absolutely not." He said the departnent had
asked for 25 new positions to be able to do the things that were
requi red under the aforenentioned Senate Bill 64. He said the
10 parole officer positions that are assigned for the
institution were not scheduled to cone on line until the next
fiscal vyear. The departnment needed tinme to train probation

officers and work with them in relation to the "risk needs
assessnent” to help themtransition fromwhere they were.

COWMM SSI ONER TAYLOR said casel oads have dropped as a result of
the bills previously brought forth over the last four or five
years by Representative Tuck and Senator McCGuire. He enphasized
that although the casel oads have dropped from 120 to 85, they
are still not at the nunber they should be. He said the
departnment is able to work wthin its system to find
efficiencies, but unfortunately it has not done that on the
institutional side. He said the departnent needs to consider
all the cases that the institutions are dealing with and all the
paperwor k requirenments. He said the departnment needs to focus
on that which the previous testifiers relayed to get a truer
picture of what the caseloads really are versus what we have

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 15- February 24, 2015



ri ght now. He said the departnent is working toward being as
efficient and effective as possible.

8:58: 02 AM

COWMM SSI ONER TAYLOR recol l ected that Chair Lynn had asked about
working in rural areas. He said the departnent does not have
the resources to work in those areas; therefore, it utilizes the
Village Public Safety Oficers (VPSGs) that live in the rural
communities to do checks, such as breathalyzers, to ensure that
the parolee is abiding by his/her conditions of parole.

CHAIR LYNN asked what percentage of parolees are living in
renote vill ages.

MR. TAYLOR said he does not know. He offered his understanding

that Chair Lynn was tal king about villages, not casel oads. He
explained, "W could have a person that's supervised by
Anchorage probation that's out in a rural area.” He said he

woul d have to research those nunbers.

CHAIR LYNN said the question did not pertain too nmuch to HB 22.
He explained that he was curious because the parolee cannot
afford to go the city and the parole officer cannot afford to
fly out to the village. He opined that the use of the VPSO was
a good fill-in for that position.

8:59: 34 AM

REPRESENTATI VE  TALERICO offered Comm ssi oner Tayl or t he
statistical information he had previously referenced and asked
whether, with that information, Conmm ssioner Taylor could then
return with nore accurate information.

COWMM SSI ONER TAYLOR confirnmed he would provide the institutional
and electronic nonitoring caseload nunbers that Representative
Tal eri co was m ssi ng.

9:00: 16 AM

CHAIR LYNN, after ascertaining no one further wi shed to testify,
cl osed public testinmony on HB 22.

CHAIR LYNN stated he was in favor of reducing the casel oads. He
said likewse he is in favor of having a snmaller student to
teacher ratio, but ventured that both that and the reduced
casel oad for parole and probation officers could cost noney. He

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -16- February 24, 2015



remarked, "In sone degree, trying to figure out how nuch that
would lower the recidivismrate is like trying to nail Jell-Oto
the wall, because you really don't know - nobody knows." He
reiterated that he was in favor of reducing the casel oads.

9:01: 34 AM
REPRESENTATI VE KELLER stated that anything with a fiscal note is

a concern because the State of Alaska is in dire straits and
cannot spend noney; however, he said the cost for reducing

reci di vism does not conpare to Medicaid growh costs. He said
the legislature passed Senate Bill 64, and "as we speak," a
Justice Reform Commission is reviewng the issue in detail. He

said it was difficult for himto consider that the cap [ proposed
under HB 22] would have any effect on the effectiveness of
probation officers or the recidivismrate.

9: 03: 50 AM

REPRESENTATI VE TUCK stated that in 2007, the State of Texas
introduced four bills, and one was a standalone bill regarding
the limtation [on casel oads] of parole and probation officers.
He said Texas was faced with spending $500 nmillion on new
prisons or investing $240 mllion, and the latter choice

resulted in an average savings of $443 nillion in tw years. By
2012, the State of Texas was actually able to close a prison.
He said a 2012 report entitled, "Reduced Caseloads |nprove
Probation Qutcone,"” published in the Journal of Cine and
Justice, stated that the effect of officers fully trained in
i npl enenting evidence-based practices was an approximate 30
percent reduction in the recidivism rate. Anot her  study
conducted in 2011, by the Crine and Justice Institute, suggested
that the reduction in caseloads could reduce crimnal recidivism
anong nedium to high-risk offenders, and Representative Tuck

said that was desirable in order to keep the public safe. He
reported that in one county in Florida, researchers found that
intensive supervision wth small casel oads reduced the

likelihood of crimnal recidivism by 26 percent for violent,
property, and drug offenses, and that percentage increased to 45
percent when the drug category was renoved.

REPRESENTATI VE TUCK said in |looking at opportunities for the
state to save noney the legislature nust ask what the cost would
be of "not doing sonething like this." He said the high
turnover rate within the Ofice of Children's Services has to do
wi th the workl oad. He said people want to help others and when
they are not able to do that they get discouraged and | eave. He

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -17- February 24, 2015



said the situation is the sanme wth parole and probation
of ficers who  want to see t he of f enders successful ly
[rehabilitated]. Wthout allocated resources, the turnover rate
for parole and probation officers will continue to be high or
even increase. He said, "W want to ... see people receiving
the services they need ... to be successful once they |eave our
prison system™ He related that at first, the State of Texas
had expected the fiscal note to be $30.3 nillion; however, the
revised fiscal note indicated that there would be no significant
cost to the state because of the reduction in recidivism and

thus, in the nunber of prisoners. The change to the bill
required the Texas Departnment of Criminal Justice to submt a
report each year explaining why the departnent failed to neet
the guidelines and stating the anobunt of noney needed to neet
t hose gui del i nes.

9: 08: 26 AM

CHAIR LYNN expressed appreciation for parole and probation
of ficers, whom he opined have a tough job no matter what their
casel oad. He offered his wunderstanding that there was an
indeterminate fiscal note for HB 22, and he inquired if there
was any way to nake it a zero fiscal note.

REPRESENTATI VE TUCK replied that he would like to use Texas'
plan as a nodel and work with Alaska's DOC to determne how to
bring the fiscal note "down to where we can start making

t hese necessary investnents to get us noney."

CHAIR LYNN said he would |like to see that happen.
9:09: 16 AM

REPRESENTATI VE STUTES said she did not think there was any
guestion that "maybe we need a little help in that direction”
and need to reduce the caseload of probation officers. She
opined that if the Justice Reform Conmittee is reviewing the
i ssue, then HB 22 may be a step ahead of its tinme. She said it
seened t hat t here wer e conmi ssi oners over seei ng many
departnments, but none of the departnents were working together.
She ventured that it may be possible to have a zero fiscal note
if all the departnents, as well as the Justice Reform Commttee,
wor ked toget her. She concluded, "I'm a proponent of the idea
but I just think it's alittle premature currently for this.”

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 18- February 24, 2015



REPRESENTATI VE TUCK asked Representative Stutes to clarify
whet her she neant premature because other people are |ooking at
t hi ngs, or because the results are unknown.

REPRESENTATI VE STUTES suggested that the committee wait for the
findings and recommendations of the Justice Reform Conmttee

before approaching them with "this." She added, that should
they not address the probation officer situation, then put it in
the mx - let themaddress it with the whole problem

CHAI R LYNN announced that HB 22 was held over.

9:12: 29 AM

ADJ QURNIVENT

There being no further business before the commttee, the House

State Affairs Standing Conmittee neeting was adjourned at 9:12
a.m

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -19- February 24, 2015



